
Regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport was held in the Conference 
Room, Municipal Building, 49 State Street, Brockport, New York, November 7, 2005 at 7:00pm. 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Morton Wexler, Trustee/Vice Mayor Carrie L. Maziarz, Trustee Maria C. Castańeda, 
Trustee David J. Wagenhauser, Trustee Mary Jo Nayman, DPW Superintendent Harry G. Donahue, 
Building/Zoning Officer Scott C. Zarnstorff, Police Chief Daniel P. Varrenti, Treasurer / Village Manager 
Ian M. Coyle, Clerk Leslie A. Morelli. 
 
EXCUSED:   
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Fire Chief Christian A. McCullough, Val Ruoff, Jim & Joan Hamlin, Allison Hadley 
(Brockport Post), Robbi Hess (Suburban News), Rich Miller, Jim Sutton, John Bush, Betty Northrup, 
Ray & Jackie Morris, Anne O’Toole, Dan Workman, Wayne & Jean Moore, Norm Knapp, Rob Carges, 
Eric Grimm, Ann Walker, Norm GianCursio, Dan Kuhn, Rodney Davis, Francisco & Linda Borrayo, Jack 
Mazzarella, Bill Weber, Merv Beaney, Fred Webster, John Lessord, Kathy Snyder, Hanny Heyen, Rudy 
Aceto, Elaine Bader, F. Wanamaker.  
    
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Wexler called the meeting to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
REVIEW OF MEETING MINUTES:  Mayor Wexler called for any additions or corrections to the minutes 
of the regular meeting held October 17, 2005.   
 

 Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried that the minutes of 
the meeting held October 17, 2005, be approved as written. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:  (later in meeting) 
 7:30pm – proposal to put out to bid a contract for refuse collection services 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION MEETINGS:  None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
1. Joan Hamlin of 50 Park Avenue said that the air inside and outside the Village Board meeting of        
     October 17th was blue with the use of four-letter words.  She was told that a Village Consultant          
      verbally assaulted two Trustees and she could not help but hear the profanity of some elected         
       officials as they entered executive session.  She said she understands that elected officials are       
        ordinary people, but they are held to higher standards.  There is no place at the Village Hall or       
         anywhere for such language, which can be considered intimidation or abuse.  She said they 
should        show respect for the voters and each other if not for themselves and not let this ever 
happen again. 
 
2.  Linda Borrayo of 155 Utica Street thanked Trustee Nayman for her work with the parks and               
      playgrounds and for saving the Village $500 in shipping costs if equipment was ordered by              
        November 1st.   She said she was confused as to why the equipment purchase was tabled from 
the        10/17 meeting to the 10/24 workshop.  She said she was glad in the end the purchase was       
              approved, but said she does not like votes taking place at workshop meetings. 
 
     Mayor Wexler shared that the reason the Board postponed decision on the purchase of equipment   
      for the Havenwood Tot Lot was that they were waiting word from Assemblyman Reilich who has      
       since announced funding of $3,000.  L. Borrayo asked when they learned of the funding.  Mayor     
        Wexler said he received a call last week. 
 
     L. Borrayo also commended Trustee Castańeda for her 3-point plan for Economic Development.      
      She said a duplication of services such as taxpayers paid for previously is unnecessary.  She          
        suggested the Board try Trustee Castańeda’s ideas.  If needed, the Village can always hire at 
some       point in the future. 
 
GUESTS:  None 
    
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
A. PUBLIC WORKS – Superintendent Harry G. Donahue  

1. Appointment of Foreman / Director of Operations – Superintendent Donahue said the Board 
had an opportunity to consider his recommendation of David Moore for the position of Foreman 
/ Director of Operations.  H. Donahue said he has many years experience, is competent, and 
he would be glad to have D. Moore as his right hand man. 

 
→Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried to appoint David Moore as 
Foreman / Director of Operations. 
 

2. Welcome Center – General Construction contract close out & final payment – H. Donahue said 
the general construction contract through Testa is 100% complete.  Village Engineer, Chatfield 
Engineers and he have reviewed all and recommend contract close out final payment of 



$14,190.10.  Trustee Maziarz asked if the two window problems have been fixed.  H. Donahue  
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD November 7, 2005 continued………………………….…………page 2 
 
             said yes.  Trustee Maziarz asked if the patio flaking problem has been fixed.  H. Donahue said  
             that is not related to Testa.  Trustee Castańeda asked the total cost of the project.  I. Coyle 
said              he should have those figures by end of the week. 
 
→ Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Wagenhauser seconded, unanimously carried to authorize final 
Welcome Center contract close out payment of $14,190.10 to Testa. 
 
        3.  NYSDOT Main Street Rehabilitation – Mayor Wexler shared that he, H. Donahue and I. Coyle   
              met with representatives of New York State Department of Transportation regarding their 2008 
              plans to rehabilitate Main Street.  This is anticipated to be a one to two year project that could  
               include improvements to sewer and water lines.  Mayor Wexler commented H. Donahue and 
I.               Coyle for doing a great job presenting the Village’s concerns.  Mayor Wexler said he also      
                  solicited the input of the Fire Department and Fred Perrine of the Town of Sweden Highway 
                   Department since they plow Main Street for the State.  The former Mayor and a group that  
                     involved representatives of the Walk Bike Brockport Action Group had started ideas.         
                       Safety is the biggest concern.  That is why he got the Fire Department and DPW 
involved right               away.  He said they will meet again and that speaker Mark Fenton is planning to 
return as well.               When the time comes, there would be a public hearing on the proposed plans. 
                                                                                
B.   POLICE DEPARTMENT – Chief Daniel P. Varrenti 

1. Calls for Service – Chief Varrenti reported 3,281 calls to 10/31.  Chief Varrenti shared that he 
previously distributed the Police Department 3rd Quarter Report.  This included 613 arrests in 
the quarter for criminal, vehicle and traffic and code enforcement.  They wrote 532 parking 
tickets.  As always, he welcomes questions and comments at any time. 
 

2. Results of various traffic details – Chief Varrenti reported that an underage drinking detail was 
held October 23rd with no violations found.  A DWI checkpoint was held October 29th with no 
results at the checkpoint. 
 

3. Crosswalk requested on Holley Street near SUNY “D” lot – Chief Varrenti shared that Chief 
Kehoe of SUNY University Police contacted him and requested that the Village place a 
crosswalk on Holley Street near the vicinity of “D” lot.  This is roughly across the street from 
Holmes.  Chief Varrenti said he would not be opposed to this and would encourage the Village 
to comply with the Chief’s request.  Trustee Maziarz concurred that it is very busy there.  It is 
almost a straight shot past Tower where vehicles do not stop. 
 

→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, unanimously carried to authorize the DPW to 
stripe a crosswalk on Holley Street near the vicinity of “D” lot. 
 

4. Rich Miller Complaint – Chief Varrenti said although he was not at the October 17th meeting, he 
reviewed the minutes and noted Rich Miller’s comments “expressing concern of 17 of his realty 
signs being stolen from Main Street properties in the last 6 months.  At approximately $40 
each, this is costly.  He said the Village is only 2.2 square miles and he would hope that at 
least Main Street would be patrolled regularly.  He suggested pc cameras be utilized to see 
what’s going on.”  Chief Varrenti said R. Miller did report some of the sign thefts.  Investigating 
complaints costs money.  Through investigating they learned that an individual in the Town of 
Webster had a number of the signs.  A statement (confession) was obtained.  R. Miller was 
given the opportunity to prosecute, but felt it best handled otherwise.  He said he encouraged 
pursuing an arrest so it is thrown into the Court system.  Chief Varrenti referred to an article in 
SUNY’s The Stylus that stresses that the police department can’t be everywhere.  Main Street 
is certainly patrolled.  He said unless an area is flooded with infrared devices, a camera only 
sees what the naked eye sees and must be placed in a location where there is no reasonable 
expectation of privacy.  He said he is always willing to explore ideas. 
 

5. DRE – Chief Varrenti shared that Sgt. Phillipy has resigned as the DRE Coordinator and the 
responsibility now lies with a member of the Greece Police Department.  This is due to 
overtime costs and other assignments. 
 

6. Law Enforcement Appreciation Dinner – Chief Varrenti shared that the first annual law 
enforcement appreciation dinner was held November 4th.  The Stetson Club donated $150, 
Chief Varrenti donated $100 and Police Secretary Bambie Zimmerman donated $25 and put on 
a pasta dinner to 90 or so people.  It was limited to thanking 3 groups:  SPARTAC and their 
families, Explorers and their families and specific merchants who donated to police department 
events throughout the year.  He said it was by invitation only and no one was not invited to 
slight.  It was for the officers to appreciate those 3 groups who have given so much.  The 
Explorers raffled a TV donated by Kelly Lewis State Farm and raised $1,800.  Half will go to 
future Explorer events and half will be used for the Explorers and Police Department to 
purchase Christmas gifts that they will hand deliver to the residents of the Lakeside Beikirch 



Care Center. 
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD November 7, 2005 continued……………………….……………page 3 
 
             Mayor Wexler shared that he and Trustee Nayman planned on attending and had Clerk Morelli 
              call to see if they were invited and what time the event started.  Clerk Morelli said the response 
              was that they were not invited, it was by invitation only.  Chief Varrenti said that is 100%           
                accurate.  The Police Department wanted the event for themselves and those they wanted to 
                 thank those who helped the department throughout the year. 
 
        7.  Budget – Trustee Wagenhauser commended the Police Department for being $60,000              
              under budget so far this fiscal year.  Chief Varrenti said he hopes to build on it. 
 
  
PUBLIC HEARINGS:   
 7:30pm – proposal to put out to bid a contract for refuse collection services 
 
Trustee Castańeda said she would like to say a few things before the public hearing in regards to the 
refuse proposal Trustee Wagenhauser has provided.  I was impressed by his thoughtful approach to 
find a solution to this issue.  My first reaction was very supportive of his ideas.  However, several 
people who have voiced concerns about the refuse proposal have since approached me.  For example, 
some residents said they use the Town of Sweden recycling center as a way to save money.  Others 
are concerned because they are not here for the winter months and do not pay refuse pick up those 
months.  The concerns voiced are legitimate ones and have caused me to reflect further on what the 
best solution would be.  I believe we should make Trustee Wagenhauser’s proposal more fair and 
equitable to all residents.  Their concerns brought to mind an article I read in the D&C where residents 
band together for better buying power.  I thought that perhaps once the street advisory committee got 
underway they could go back to their streets and take the names of interested people who would like to 
participate.  Perhaps we can have a sign up list at the Village Hall or on our website.  The Village could 
then negotiate on their behalf.  Those who want the service would pay for it and still pay less.  This 
would alleviate the Village from having to bill the residents.  The company would bill directly each client. 
That would save the Village time and money and residents would be assured that an added charge for 
billing them would not occur.  This way the people would have a choice, and people who do not need 
this service would not incur another expense. 
 
Mayor Wexler called for a motion to open the public hearing. 
 
→ Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried to close the regular 
meeting and open the public hearing at 7:30pm. 
 
Clerk Morelli shared that the legal notice was published in the Village’s Official paper (Suburban News) 
and the Village’s website (brockportny.org) on October 24th.  She read the legal notice as follows: 
 

VILLAGE OF BROCKPORT 
LEGAL NOTICE 

 
Please take notice that the Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport will hold a Public Hearing 
beginning at 7:30pm on Monday, November 7, 2005, in the Conference Room of the Village Hall, 49 
State Street, Brockport, New York to consider the following:  

 
• Proposal for the Village of Brockport to put out to bid a contract for refuse collection services. 

 
All interested parties will be given the opportunity to be heard. 
 
Clerk Morelli made copies available at the door and Mayor Wexler read the following guidelines for 
public comment from NYCOM: 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES 
PER NYCOM 

 
The public shall be allowed to speak only during the Public Comment period of the meeting or at 
such other time as a majority of the Board shall allow. 

 
 Speakers must step to the front of the room. 
 
 Speakers must give their name, address and organization, if any. 
 
 Speakers must be recognized by the presiding officer. 
 
 Speakers must limit their remarks to 5 minutes on a given topic. 
 



Speakers may not yield any remaining time they may have to another speaker. 
 
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD November 7, 2005 continued…………………………………….page 4 
 

Board members may, with the permission of the Mayor, interrupt a speaker during their 
remarks, but only for the purpose of clarification or information. 

 
All remarks shall be addressed to the Board as a body and not to any member thereof. 

 
Speakers shall observe the commonly accepted rules of courtesy, decorum, dignity and good 
taste. 

 
Interested parties or their representatives may address the Board by written communications. 

 
Mayor Wexler welcomed all to the public hearing.  He said the Board would not be voting on the issue 
tonight.  He thanked Trustee Wagenhauser for taking the initiative to seek a solution to refuse collection 
issues.  Mayor Wexler turned the meeting over to Trustee Wagenhauser to make a presentation. 
 
Trustee Wagenhauser referred to the write up which has been available at the Village Hall since 
October 31st.  It reads as follows: 
 
On November 7, 2005 there will be a Public Hearing regarding the Village of Brockport contracting with 
refuse collector(s) to provide Village-wide refuse/trash collection service.  The proposed 
procedure/service would entail refuse collection companies bidding on a contract prepared by the 
Village.  The winning bidder would then provide this service to either (a) the entire Village, or (b) one or 
more of four Village districts that would be developed.  The Village would then bill residents, either on 
one of our current billing mechanisms or separately. 
 
Other municipalities that have experienced significant success with this type of bidding process include: 
Orleans County, Brighton and Churchville. 
 
By creating economies of scale, refuse collection companies can provide their service more efficiently, 
saving man-hours, fuel and billing costs. 
 
The advantages to Village residents are many.  First and foremost, financial.  Experience from other 
governments show about a 50% decrease in rates to about $13-14/month.  This would equate to 
savings of about $150 per year for most residents.  Similar results in Brockport would equate to the 
cash equivalent of about a 15-20% tax decrease for the average homeowner.  (Obviously, this would 
not be a tax decrease, since Village residents would not be taxed for this service). 
 
Other advantages to this service include: 

• less wear on Village streets (only one truck per street), thereby prolonging the life of Brockport’s 
infrastructure; 

• the ability to control pick-up times, i.e. after 7am; 
• refuge cans at the curb one day per week, as opposed to two or three; 
• the ability to place more and/or other items to curb not now allowed. 

 
There may be drawbacks for some residents.  Experience from other municipalities has shown that this 
system works best when all village residents participate.  This would adversely affect those who “pool” 
their garbage, take their garbage to the dump, or are gone for extended periods of time (i.e., 
snowbirds). 
 
Other issues to be determined include; whether commercial or residential dumpster service should also 
be put out for bid; the use and amount of senior discounts (i.e., those receiving enhanced STAR 
exemptions); the length of the contract and whether the Village bids out the entire Village or creates 
contracts for 3-4 “districts”.  (To ensure an active competitor for the subsequent contract, the Village 
may wish to ensure there are at least two viable competitors by limiting the number of districts any 
collector can serve, i.e., maximum 3 of 4 districts).  Other issues include: whether Village residents 
provide their own refuse cans or have them supplied by the winning bidder.  (The contract could 
request multiple bid lines that would cover these and other such situations). 
 
Competitive bidding processes can serve as a way to save residents money while maintaining or even 
increasing their quality of life.  Should the Village Board decide to proceed, a contract would be 
prepared and put out for bid.  The winning bidder(s) would then commence service in approximately 6 
months. 
 
 
Trustee Wagenhauser said he has spoken to many people and knows some widowers that pay $350 
per year for garbage pick up.  He said his proposal would save people money and improve everyone’s 
quality of life.  He said he has spoken at length with representatives from Orleans County, as well as 



the Town of Brighton and Village of Churchville.  He said the Village would bill the residents either on 
their tax bill, water/sewer bill or separately.  Trustee Wagenhauser referred to a July 2002 study of 
residential refuse collection by then State Comptroller H. Carl McCall.  The study states that rates could 
decrease as much as 50%.  This creates economies of scale regarding fuel costs and man-hours.  The 
garbage hauler would go to every house rather than every 3rd or 5th house.  Currently there are 3 waste 
haulers   
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD November 7, 2005 continued……………………………………..page 5 
 
that have permits to pick up in the Village.  They are Suburban Disposal, Waste Management and 
Heberle Disposal.  Each of these companies has heavy trucks putting wear and tear on Village streets. 
 This would be decreased as well as the Village could better control pick up times (mandate no earlier 
than 7am.)  There would also be cans at the curb only one day on a street.  Trustee Wagenhauser said 
municipalities that contract pick up do not do annual spring clean up.  Further, the Village pays $9,000 
per year for its refuse collection.  This could be rolled in to the contract at no cost. 
 
Trustee Wagenhauser said the proposal works best when ALL participate.  He said he realizes that 
some pool their garbage, utilize the Town transfer station or are gone for winter months.  He said they 
could work in senior discounts and contract length.  He said if the Village were divided into 4 districts, 
any one company could only win 3 of the 4 districts.  This gives the ability for competition at the end of 
the contract period.  Another thing that would have to be worked into a contract is whether the 
company(s) supplies the garbage totes or if the residents must supply their own.  He said many things 
could be added into the contract to benefit Village residents.  He said in Brighton, senior citizens have 
their totes picked up at the house, not the street. 
 
Mayor Wexler thanked Trustee Wagenhauser for his presentation and invited the public to comment. 
 
Public: 
Mr. Val Ruoff of 300 North Avenue Webster said during the 1950’s his grandfather operated a dairy 
farm in Sweden and learned about being welcomed into a community.  His father graduated from 
SUNY Brockport.  His Uncle was President of his class.  He was born here and returned to the area in 
2003.  His grandmother lived the end of her life at the Landing and died at Lakeside Memorial Hospital. 
 He said his father was a garbage man and he understands the plight of small haulers who have long 
serviced the community.  He hopes they will be allowed to do their jobs.  V. Ruoff said he is the District 
Manager for Waste Management of Rochester.  Therefore, he has a large responsibility to the area and 
understands how delicate the businesses are that he competes with.  He said there are 14 haulers in 
Monroe County and it is not easy to stay in business.  This is their livelihood.  He provided a document 
dated August 9th from NSWMA regarding New York State Residential Waste Collection.  It’s conclusion 
reads:  “The creation of solid waste hauling districts or contracting on behalf of town residents is not 
always in the best interest of the community.  Competition is eliminated and customer service suffers 
when only one hauling company is chosen to service an area.  In addition, smaller waste collection 
companies, which employ local citizens, may find it difficult to compete in large service areas and have 
to close their operations.  In today’s political climate where less government is better these municipal 
districts will create a new government entity paid for by a new fee or tax on each property owner.  The 
establishment of municipal waste districts succeeds in accomplishing none of what New York State 
residents want – minimal government interference in their daily lives, fair taxation and the ability to 
choose their own service providers.”  V. Ruoff concluded by saying he would like to know what they 
could do to help. 
 
Betty Northrup of 450 East Avenue said this would put further financial burden on those who try to cost 
cut by pooling garbage with their neighbors and splitting the cost or those who utilize the Town dump.  
She said it should be optional and should be billed separately to those who opt for it.  She wondered if 
all trash can be picked up in just one day, if a survey had been done, if those with private contracts 
would be able to get a refund, and if cans are provided.  She asked the Village Board to hear and 
respect everyone, not just those bothered by early pick up noise or unsightly cans at the curb. 
 
Norman Knapp of 72 South Avenue agreed that it should be by choice.  He said he is satisfied with the 
way he does it.  He said it costs him $75 to $100 per year to purchase passes for the Town recycle 
center.  He said if he is unable to take it there himself at some point, then he might need to consider 
another option such as curbside pickup.  He expressed concern for the elderly who may have a minimal 
amount of refuse. 
 
Rob Carges of 33 Maxon Street said it really is a fairness issue.  He said his neighbors, Ray & Jackie 
Morris, an older couple have a household of 2 people whereas he has a household of 6 people.  He 
said it probably would be a deal for larger households like his.  He expressed concern of the cost for 
the Village to do the billing and collection.  He also expressed doubt that all garbage could be picked up 
in one day.  He said he wrote a letter to the Editor of the local paper a couple of years ago about the 
pick up noise at 4am.  As a Sweden Town Board member, he said the Town’s recycle center operates 
at a loss of $12,000 per year.  He said Village residents purchased 280 permits, representing $7,000, 
last year.  He said although it would be a bargain for his personal residence, he asked that government 
stay out of private business. 
 



Eric Grimm of 93 Meredith Drive represents Suburban Disposal.  He said it is a third generation family 
company of 40 years.  He said they compete against several other such companies.  He reviewed the 
2002 Comptroller’s report on refuse collection and said information was extrapolated from it and that it 
is flawed thinking.  He shared that Brighton and Churchville have not worked out since the hauler 
awarded the contract in Brighton went out of business, and Churchville residents now get the benefit of 
free garbage due to the Riga landfill.  He said there may be less trucks on the streets that may increase 
the longevity of the streets, however, trucks are a necessity.  He questioned if the Village is so  
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD November 7, 2005 continued………………………………………page 
6 
 
concerned with this that they will be restricting other commercial vehicles such as delivery trucks, 
contractors, landscapers, etc.  How about the Village’s own Public Works trucks.  People need to have 
access to all of those services.  He said it is an unproven correlation.  Regarding collection times, they 
do their best to respect callers’ complaints.  He said the landfills close between 3 and 3:30pm; 
therefore, they are under time constraints to get the job done.  He said the bidding process could have 
an undesirable repercussion of limiting competition.  Competition is a good thing when it comes to 
price, service and quality.  If haulers aren’t in business at re-bidding time, there will be limited 
competition for bids.  He said they are staffed with customer service representatives who take 
residential and commercial calls every day.  They know how to handle the calls, respond to issues, and 
issue work orders.  He said that would have to be handled by the Village in addition to billing and 
collection.  He said the Comptroller’s report does not take into account their pricing tiers.  He said they 
have pricing tiers such as pay by the bag, senior discounts, prepay discounts, vacation credits, and 
snowbird terms.  He said the Village has a significant number of renters.  They often have unusual 
needs regarding terms or overall cleanouts.  He said their overhead is manageable.  It is the labor, fuel, 
trucks, and use of the landfill that is costly.  He said the City of Rochester provides garbage pick up, but 
it is their own employees doing so and it is on their tax bill at a pretty high cost. 
 
Ann Lee Walker of 20 Brook Terrace said she is a single user and as a teacher is gone in July and 
August.  Therefore, she uses the Town recycle center.  It best fits her needs.  She said there should be 
a difference between a single or two-person household versus a family household.  She said people 
should have options. 
 
John Bush of 157 Barry Street said he pays $300 per year for garbage collection on Barry Street and 
$700 per year for garbage collection at his rental property on King Street.  He said he likes the idea 
Trustee Castańeda put forward about the Village negotiating better prices, but giving the property 
owners a choice.  He said half of his neighbors on Barry Street do not have garbage collection. 
 
Norm GianCursio of College Street expressed concern of personal freedom of choice being taken 
away. He said the proposal would add cost to those who have a minimal cost method already in place.  
He also expressed concern that the Village would have to hire another employee to handle billing, 
collection and customer service.  This would be at a cost to taxpayers.  He said it sounds like the sewer 
tax (rent) that was implemented.  It would generate revenue, but there would be no control.  He said he 
is definitely against the proposal.  It would hamper free enterprise.  He said Trustee Wagenhauser 
stated a 15 to 20 percent savings.  He said it might start out that way, but people would likely see 
added costs within a few years.  He asked why wear and tear on Village streets is a concern when it 
comes to garbage trucks, but not constant DPW trucks and equipment.  He said when the Village was 
considering starting the Farmer’s Market, there was a questionnaire for citizens to fill out.  He 
suggested this be put to a referendum. 
 
Trustee Wagenhauser corrected N. GianCursio and said the projected savings are not 15 percent, but 
50 percent.  That includes administrative costs being figured in.  Further, according to Village Law, this 
does not require being put to a referendum. 
 
Dan Kuhn of 34 Utica Street said he is a full time law student, his wife is a teacher in Rochester and 
they have a 7-month-old son.  He said no disrespect to snowbirds that may be able to afford two 
houses, but they are barely making ends meet.  He disapproves of the beaurocracy of government and 
does not believe this proposal should be the Village government’s role.  He said he would be happy to 
have the Village negotiate better prices since the single customer really has no negotiating power.  
Other than that, Village government should stay out of this as much as possible. 
 
Rodney Davis of Honeoye Falls said he has rental property in the Village.  He asked what would 
happen to the Sweden recycle center if this proposal were implemented.  He said he called the City of 
Rochester and learned that they charge $317 per year for garbage pick up at a single family home.  He 
questioned the Village’s administrative costs.  He questioned who would handle customer service calls 
since complaints would not be regarding Village vehicles or employees, but the company awarded the 
bid. 
 
Trustee Wagenhauser said other municipalities built in administrative costs.  Some handle the 
customer service calls.  He said that has not been worked out yet.  He said this is the time to bring up 
comments, concerns and questions.  He asked R. Davis how he would like it handled. 
 



R. Davis asked how they would charge.  Per house or per unit.  Trustee Wagenhauser said per unit.  
However, he understands that those with 4 or more units have dumpsters per the Code.  That, too, 
could be put out to bid.  R. Davis said his concern is higher and higher taxes, such as the sewer tax 
(rent).  This simply makes the properties worth less.  He said he likes the idea of “voice your choice” 
where each gets to choose the plan that works best for them. 
 
Linda Borrayo of 155 Utica Street thanked Trustee Wagenhauser for trying to save the residents 
money. However, many do not use garbage pick up services or can’t afford to.  It should be fair and 
equitable to the elderly and snowbirds.  She expressed concern of the statement that “local government 
officials  
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD November 7, 2005 continued…………………………..………..page 7 
 
would have greater control”.  She said she likes to take control of her own bills and does not need the 
Village to pass on any administrative cost.  She said so far she is the 10th person to speak and no one 
is in favor.  She suggests the Village move on to other Village business. 
 
Francisco Borrayo of 155 Utica Street commended Trustee Wagenhauser for trying to save the 
community money.  He said he hopes the Board will merge the ideas of Trustee Wagenhauser and 
Trustee Castańeda and negotiate with garbage haulers on cost to make it more equitable. 
 
Jack Mazzarella of 51 Brookdale Road said he was bothered by the number of trucks coming down his 
street a number of years ago and tried to eliminate some of them.  The waste haulers suggested he get 
all his neighbors on the street to go with one hauler.  That would warrant a rate reduction.  However, he 
was told he would have to collect the money.  He said that was ridiculous.  He suggested people be 
offered a discount if one company does a street, so 3 different companies are not around 2 or 3 
different days every week. 
 
N. GianCursio of College Street said years ago the Village operated a dump on Canal Road.  It turned 
out to be costly.  Closing, monitoring and re-closing that landfill will create expenses that will exceed 
any savings in the long run.  He suggested the Board put this proposal to rest, allow citizens to 
continue to utilize free enterprise and move on to more pressing matters. 
 
Mayor Wexler thanked the public for expressing their views and welcomed any to visit him at the Village 
Hall to further discuss the issue. 
 
→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, unanimously carried to close the public 
hearing and re-open the regular meeting at 8:30pm. 
 
 
C. BUILDING / ZONING / CODE ENFORCEMENT - Scott C. Zarnstorff 

1. 60 Perry Street & 26 Brockway Place – S. Zarnstorff shared that a few meetings ago a citizen 
expressed concern of over occupancy.  This prompted an investigation and violation notices 
being sent to the property owner (same for both).  These notices went unanswered.  Therefore, 
in working with Village Attorney Calandra more aggressive action has been pursued.  Search 
warrants were executed with the assistance of the Brockport Police Department and the search 
revealed code and over occupancy violations.  It next goes to Town Court.  S. Zarnstorff said 
this started from a citizen complaint.  He assured the public that concerns are looked into.  He 
said he can’t promise immediate results, but can get the process going in which the Village 
hopes to prevail. 

  
      Mayor Wexler thanked Code Enforcement Officers S. Zarnstorff and L. Vaughan, Village          
       Attorney Calandra and the Police Department for their efforts.  He commended those citizens  
        who came forward with their concerns and were willing to sign affidavits.  Mayor Wexler said 
we       are still a country of laws, not individuals. 
 
2.  Master Property List – Trustee Maziarz thanked S. Zarnstorff for completing the large task of     
      creating a master property list.  It is a huge document.  S. Zarnstorff thanked Trustee Maziarz 
for      her early work on the project. 
 
3.  Software – Trustee Maziarz said she looks forward to the new building/zoning/code 
enforcement      software being up and running.  She looks forward to demonstration of its abilities. 
 

D.  FIRE /AMBULANCE / COMMUNICATIONS - Chief Christian A. McCullough  
       1.   Membership Adds/Drops/Transfers – Chief McCullough asked the Board to consider approving 
             the following drops:  Lev Gelfand, Michael Donahue, Emily Greineder, Dan Beckwith, David      
              Chmiel, Scott Portwood, Jim Portwood the following adds: Sean Tobin (mutual aid member),    
              James Weber (mutual aid member), Kelly Smith (ambulance only).           
 
→   Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried approving the 
previously mentioned drops and adds. 
 



       2.  Call Load – Ambulance calls year to date:  1417 Fire calls year to date:  771 
 
       3.  Miscellaneous – Chief McCullough reported that the roof replacement has begun at 38 Market   
             Street.  He said they plan to go to Albany November 15th to thank Assemblyman Reilich for the 
              $20,000 year to date in funding and to develop more funding opportunities. 
 
       4.  Bid Results – Fire Chief’s Vehicle(s) – Chief McCullough reported that one bid was received in  
              response to the advertisement for one or two new white 2005 Ford Explorer XLT’s.  The bid 
was             from Van Bortel Ford for $27,995 each.  Due to the potential savings, Chief McCullough      
                    encouraged the Board to accept the bid and allow the purchase of 2 for the Chief’s fleet.    
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD November 7, 2005 continued…………………….………………page 8 
 
            Trustee Wagenhauser said the vehicles they are replacing are almost 10 years old.  Chief          
             McCullough said yes.  Trustee Wagenhauser asked how long they estimate to have the 
vehicles             in service.  Chief McCullough said they look to 6 years as primary in service.  Then 
they can                    pass it down for use as the duty officer’s vehicle or the department pool car.  They 
utilize them                as long as they do not become a money pit of repairs.  I. Coyle concurred that 
they average 10               years of use.  Trustee Wagenhauser said the Fire Department acts like little 
siblings with hand                me downs. 
 
            Mayor Wexler said the replacement schedule was interrupted a few years ago when one vehicle 
            was totaled and replaced with a used vehicle.  Chief McCullough said a vehicle is slated to be   
              used for the new EMS Battalion Chief.  Trustee Wagenhauser said they would be creating an  
               EMS Battalion Chief position to handle more responsibility for the department that generates  
                 revenue (ambulance).  Chief McCullough said this would allow a Chief’s response in a timely 
                 fashion. 
 
→ Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried to accept the bid 
of Van Bortel Ford for $27,995 each and authorize the purchase of 2 new white 2005 Ford Explorer 
XLT’s. 
 
       5.  Fire Chief’s Elections – Chief McCullough shared that Brockport Fire Department Chief’s            
             elections will be held December 8th.  He will complete his term at the end of December.  Deputy 
             Chief L. Vaughan will run unopposed as Chief.  Assistant Chief T. Rombaut will run unopposed 
             as Deputy Chief. Scott Smith and Dan Marenus will run against each other for Assistant Chief.  
              L. Vandervort and J. Toole will run against each other for EMS Battalion Chief.  Chief               
                McCullough said he feels comfortable retiring in that all candidates have a lot to offer.  He 
said it             has been a life changing experience.  Trustee Maziarz said they would be sorry to see 
him go.                Mayor Wexler said he would be happy to do the swearing in in January. 
 
E.  TREASURER / VILLAGE MANAGER - Ian M. Coyle 

1. Certificate of Village Tax Surrender – (unpaid 2005 Village taxes to County relevy).  I. Coyle 
shared that 2005 Village taxes were due July 1st without penalty.  The Village accepted them 
until October 31st with penalty.  There are 52 properties that have not paid totaling $84,685.92 
in Village tax and $7,621.73 in interest that totals $92,307.65 due to the Village.  These will be 
surrendered to Monroe County for collection on the 2006 County tax bills. 
 

→ Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried to authorize the 
Certificate of Village Tax Surrender.  The Mayor and Trustees signed the certificate. 
 

2. Adopt Town of Sweden 2006 Tax Roll (with exceptions if needed) – I. Coyle said although the 
Village is considering its options regarding assessment, any changes such as disbanding the 
Village as an assessing unit and going fully with the Town as assessor cannot be implemented 
for a few months.  For 2006, the Village must continue its practice of adopting the Town of 
Sweden’s 2006 Tax Roll, with exceptions if needed. 
 

→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried to adopt the Town of 
Sweden’s 2006 tax roll with exceptions. 
 

3. Utility Audit Proposal – I. Coyle asked for authorization to have Troy and Banks conduct a 
utility audit of phone, gas and electric billing going back 6 years.  Clerk Morelli said the Village 
has utilized this company in the past. 

 
→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried to authorize I. Coyle to 
accept the proposal of Troy and Banks to audit utility (phone, gas and electric) billing for the past 6 
years. 
 

4. Havenwood Park Equipment Order – I. Coyle asked for authorization to take the $3,000 out of 
Project 41.  The Village will then be reimbursed with funding promised by Assemblyman 
Reilich. 



 
→ Trustee Nayman moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried authorizing I. Coyle to 
take the $3,000 from Project 41 with reimbursement to come from Assemblyman Reilich. 
 

5.  NYS Comptroller’s Audit – I. Coyle shared that he asked for a NYS Comptroller’s audit as the    
      Board requested.  He explained that the response was negative since they have been               
       mandated to audit every school district in the state over the next 5 years.  They will only honor 
        such requests that have a very compelling reason.  I. Coyle said the Comptroller’s Office        
          recommends that the Village rely on its current annual external audit and its results and        
           recommendations.   

 
 

 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD November 7, 2005 continued……………………….……………page 9 

 
            Trustee Castańeda said there is a difference between a state audit and the audit the Village       

      hires Chris Trento to do.  She suggested looking into having a second external audit that          
       would be like having a second opinion.  I. Coyle said they could do that, but it would cost         
         another $7,000.  Trustee Castańeda said that it too much.  Trustee Wagenhauser 
commented        that Chris Trento is very good. 

 
       6.  BLOG - I. Coyle said he has started a BLOG (a web log for news and notes) at                           

       villagemanager@blogspot.com.  It can also be reached from the Village’s official website at     
        brockportny.org.  This is the cutting edge of on-line communication.  Trustee Maziarz thanked 
        him for doing so. 
 

F.   CLERK - Leslie A. Morelli – no report 
 
G.   ATTORNEY – Thomas D. Calandra / DEPUTY ATTORNEY – Frank A. Aloi  
 
H.   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT –  

 
SUPPORT BOARDS REPORTS:  
A.   PLANNING BOARD – Chair R. Scott Winner 
  
B.   LIBRARY BOARD – President Matthew Minor   
 
C.   ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - Chair John Bush  
 
VILLAGE BOARD REPORTS: 
A.   Trustee/Vice Mayor Maziarz  

1. Farmer’s Market – Trustee Maziarz said the second season of the Farmer’s Market has            
 concluded.  She said it was another great year.  However, she will be looking to develop a       
  different structure next year.  She would like to form a committee to bring forth ideas and 
share the responsibilities.  A five-member committee could break up the responsibilities of the 
20        weeks by planning special events and attending/managing particular days.  Trustee 
Maziarz     thanked John Lessord and Kathy Snyder for their help in preparing the area on 
Sunday             mornings. 
 
Mayor Wexler thanked Trustee Maziarz for her hard work on the Farmer’s Market over the last 
two years.  He said the Fire Department has expressed concern of the location of the market, 
and suggested that be a topic of discussion for future Farmer’s Market management. 
 

2. Brownfields Workshop – Trustee Maziarz said she learned of a Brownfields workshop to be 
held in New Jersey in February.  She said the Village should be represented in an effort to 
work towards dealing with its abandoned industrial sites.  She said she is willing to attend and 
would not ask the Village to pay for it. 

 
Mayor Wexler later said Trustee Maziarz should not have to incur all of the costs.  This would 
be addressed, as registration gets closer. 

 
3. Intergovernmental Committee – Trustee Maziarz said her idea to form this committee was        

 adopted by the Village Board at the organizational meeting.  She and Trustee Castańeda        
  represent the Village.  They and I. Coyle will hold their first meeting tomorrow with Town of 
Sweden Supervisor Lester, Brockport Central School District Superintendent Fallon and SUNY 
Vice President for Student Affairs Ray DiPasquale. 
 

4. Election Day – Trustee Maziarz reminded all that tomorrow is General Election Day and 
encouraged voting. 

 
B.   Trustee Castańeda  



1. Funding – Trustee Castańeda said she is pleased that Assemblyman Reilich was able to 
obtain funding for the Village.  The $3,000 for playground equipment for the Havenwood Tot 
Lot will be appreciated by our children.  The $5,000 for repairs to our Village Clock will be 
appreciated by   ex-Mayor Stull among others. 
 

2. Village Manager’s Cell Phone – Trustee Castańeda referred to I. Coyle’s memo. 
 
→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Wagenhauser seconded, unanimously carried that the Village 
cover the cost of I. Coyle’s cell phone. 
 
       3.   Welcome Center – Trustee Castańeda said resident Jack Mazzarella had an idea regarding      
              providing bike racks and bicycles to rent/borrow at the Welcome Center.  Mayor Wexler said it 
is              a great idea as long as there is no unreasonable liability to the Village.  He said they would    
                  check into that and discuss it at the next workshop. 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD November 7, 2005 continued……………………………………page 10 
 
       4.   Troy & Banks – Trustee Castańeda thanked I. Coyle for following through on her                       
               recommendation to utilize Troy & Banks for utility auditing.   
 

5. State Power Authority – Trustee Castańeda said there are many ways to save money 
regarding electricity.  She said Chief McCullough previous stated the huge utility costs at 38 
Market Street.  She said they might be able to make recommendations.  I. Coyle said he has a 
meeting with a representative next week on this. 
 

6. Intergovernmental Committee – Trustee Castańeda said she is looking forward to the first 
meeting.  She hopes to be able to share services wherever possible.  She hopes that in the 
coming year the Village will adopt the Town of Sweden as its Assessing Unit.  Many other 
Villages’ use their Town’s assessment and she read recently where Spencerport is having 
Ogden do so.  She said there might be an opportunity to share Economic Development costs 
as well.  She said sharing services where possible is in the best interest of the taxpayers. 

 
C. Trustee Wagenhauser  

1.  Refuse Proposal – Trustee Wagenhauser said he understands the “choice” concept many         
              spoke about in the public hearing.  However, he said he learned from other municipalities that  
               when people start to pool their garbage together, the municipality loses out and those are in a 
                sense subsidized.  Some utilize the town recycle center where $25 covers 10 bags and then  
                 “pool” the rest of the year.  He said even snowbirds make out by saving money with the         
                  proposal.  He said everyone pays for something they do not use.  Some don’t use the Town 
                   Recycle Center.  Some don’t use the Senior Center.  We all pay for things we don’t use. 
 

2.  Fire / Ambulance – Trustee Wagenhauser shared that he was meeting with the Deputy Fire       
             Chief and a call came in.  He rode along and commented how well the Fire Department,            
              Ambulance, Fire Police, Police all work together so well.  They were all professional and knew 
               their roles.  He said he gained a new appreciation and is very proud of all of them. 
 

3.  Water – Trustee Wagenhauser commented that so far this fiscal year water expenses are down 
             and revenues are up.  He said this is due to a good job by DPW of finding more leaks.  He        
              suggested the Board discuss the possibility of reducing water rates at the next workshop. 
 
             Trustee Castańeda commented that one of C. Trento’s recommendations in his audit report 
was               that the Village examine whether being in the water business is worthwhile.  I. Coyle said 
that                  refers to the long-term viability of it.   

 
4.   Holidays – Trustee Wagenhauser said plans are in the works for the traditional holiday events. 

              He would like to add a light and decorating contest.  He said they had such when he was         
                growing up and he once won.  He said there are businesses willing to sponsor prizes and      
                  participate.  This would be a way for residents, off campus SUNY students and merchants 
to                  show their holiday spirit.  There would be no cost to the Village.  Details will be 
forthcoming. 
 
D.    Trustee Nayman  

1. Parks – Trustee Nayman thanked H. Donahue on behalf of the Parks Committee for efforts to  
 maintain and upgrade the parks and playgrounds and for finding better costs on replacement  
  items. 
 

2. SPARTAC – Trustee Nayman said a citizen posed a question to her for the October 17th 
meeting, but the Chief was away.  She said she met with Chief Varrenti.  The question was:  “If 
a member of SPARTAC were to abuse or exceed guidelines, would the community be 
advised.”  Chief Varrenti thanked Trustee Nayman for visiting him.  His response was that it 
depends on the circumstances and the Village Board’s wishes.  He said he hopes that a 
SPARTAC member would be treated no differently than a police officer, fire fighter, or 



emergency medical provider.  Honesty makes for a better community and a better government. 
He said the issue would be made public if possible.  However, sometimes personnel matters 
need executive session.  

 
E.     Mayor Wexler  

1. Accept resignation of Michelle Pedley from Historic Preservation Board – Mayor Wexler shared 
that due to moving out of the Village, Michelle Pedley has resigned from the Historic 
Preservation Board. 

 
→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, unanimously carried to accept the 
resignation of Michelle Pedley from the Historic Preservation Board with regret. 
 

2. Funding from Assemblyman Reilich – As mentioned earlier, Mayor Wexler shared that 
Assemblyman Reilich has come up with funding of $3,000 for playground equipment and 
$5,000 for Village Clock repairs.  This is very much appreciated. 

 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD November 7, 2005 continued……………………..……………page 11 
 

3. Annual External Audit – As mentioned earlier, Mayor Wexler shared that C. Trento completed 
the annual external audit of the Village’s finances.  Mayor Wexler said he and I. Coyle met with 
C. Trento and reviewed the report and recommendations.  Copies were distributed to the 
Trustees. 
 

4. Lighting Needed – Mayor Wexler said L. Vaughan recommended 9 locations throughout the 
Village where additional lighting would be helpful.  There are poles there, but no lights.  Mayor 
Wexler said in the past Chief Varrenti has endorsed any additional lighting to help deter crime 
and increase safety.  H. Donahue agreed to contact Niagara Mohawk and get an annual usage 
cost estimate.  The locations are:  near 61 Monroe Avenue, 113 Utica Street, 76 Monroe 
Avenue, 32 College Street, 78 Holley Street, 55 Holley Street, 43 Market Street, 49 State 
Street, 14 State Street.  The light at 64/66 Market Street can be removed.  This will be 
addressed at the next meeting. 
 

5. Comprehensive Plan Updates – Mayor Wexler said the Village did not vote on the 
comprehensive plan updates at the time the Town of Sweden did.  Due to many new Board 
members, the Village Board and Town Board had a work session on the issue at the end of 
August.  The Village Board needs to accept or reject it.  Trustee Maziarz asked if it is legal for 
new Board members to vote.  Trustee Castańeda said according to NYCOM it is fine as long 
as they received all of the documentation.  Clerk Morelli concurred the same for the ZBA 
making a decision on a pending application of the former Board. 

 
→ Trustee Castańeda moved to accept the comprehensive plan updates.  No second.  Motion died. 
 
              Trustee Wagenhauser expressed concern of the proposed project on Redman Road and its     
              potential impact on downtown Village of Brockport.  He also commented that a portion of that   
               proposed project involves senior housing.  Since his family business is senior related, he 
thinks               he should recuse himself from voting.  Mayor Wexler asked if there were any other 
concerns                   besides Redman Road rezoning. 
 
              Joan Hamlin of 50 Park Avenue commented that the proposed Redman Road project would     
              not be nearly as detrimental to downtown Brockport as the NYSDOT 1-2 year Main Street        
               project. 
 
→ Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, Trustee Castańeda opposed, carried to table 
further discussion to the next workshop meeting. 
 

6. Appointments (if interest filed by 11/7) – Library Board, Historic Preservation Board, Parks 
Committee – Mayor Wexler said there were no applicants for the vacancies on the above 
named boards.  The vacancies will remain open until filled.  He mentioned that 3 applications 
were submitted for the proposed Code of Ethics Board and 5 applications were submitted for 
the proposed Village Advisory Committee. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
1.  Kathy Snyder of Lyman Street asked the status of a memorandum of understanding with G.E. and    
      their giving money to the Village for the Barry Street playground.  Mayor Wexler said he has had a   
       conversation with the Village’s attorney representation (Underberg & Kessler), but nothing has yet  
        been finalized.  He said those affected by the contamination problem would have an opportunity to 
        provide input to see how the money is utilized (if there is any money).  The Village Board will then  
         take their input into consideration and make a decision.  K. Snyder suggested the Village does 
not         need expensive legal assistance for this.   
 
AUDIT: 



 Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, unanimously carried that the bills be 
allowed and paid upon audit. 

 
Village 
Date Check #   Amount 
10/5/05 172244-172246 401.00 
10/26/05 172328  4,500.00 
11/3/05 172330  112.50 
11/7/05 172331-172380 27,462.53 

 
Fire 

 
Third Party Billing  
11/7/05 645-651  4,016.67 
 

 
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD November 7, 2005 continued………………………..…………page 12 
 

Capital Projects 
11/7/05 1952-1956  21,377.57 
 
Sewer 

 
Water  

        11/7/05  1260-1263  297.50 
        
 
ADJOURNMENT: 

 Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried that the meeting be 
adjourned at 9:42pm. 

 
__________________________ 
Leslie Ann Morelli, Village Clerk 

 


